
APPROVED 1 
MINUTES OF THE MILFORD BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 2 

February 9, 2009 3 
 4 

PRESENT: Gary L. Daniels, Chairman  5 
  Tim Finan, Vice Chairman 6 
  James Dannis, Member 7 

Mike Putnam, Member 8 
Katherine Bauer, Member 9 
Guy Scaife, Town Administrator 10 

  Darlene J. Bouffard, Recording Secretary 11 
 12 
  13 
1. CALL TO ORDER, BOARD OF SELECTMEN INTRODUCTIONS & PUBLIC SPEAKING 14 
INSTRUCTIONS:  The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  Chairman Daniels led the Pledge of Allegiance 15 
and then introduced Board members, noting that those people in the audience who want to speak or add to the dis-16 
cussion should please go to the microphone in order to be heard on the PEG Access live broadcast.    17 
 18 
2. APPOINTMENTS: 19 
 20 
5:30 p.m. – Non-Public Session (RSA 91-A:3, II(c) Reputation.  Selectman Putnam moved to enter into non-21 
public session at 5:31 in accordance with RSA 91-A:3, II(c) Reputation.  Vice Chairman Finan seconded.  All mem-22 
bers were polled individually and assented to enter into non-public session.  After discussion, Selectman Putnam 23 
moved to come out of non-public session at 5:33 p.m.  Vice Chairman Finan seconded.  All were in favor. 24 
 25 
5:45 p.m. – Request for Approval of (2) and Denial of (2) Property Tax Abatement Applications.   Marti Noel, 26 
Assessor, indicated that the applicant’s were notified of tonight’s meeting, however none of the applicants have 27 
notified her that they planned to attend tonight’s meeting.  Ms. Noel explained there are abatement applications to 28 
discuss; two are recommended by the Assessor for approval and two for denial.  The two recommended for ap-29 
proval are for one lot that was partially complete as of April 1, 2008 (Map/Lot 030-085) and the other had a second 30 
floor in process of being finished which was also not complete as of April 1, 2008 (Map/Lot 030-085). 31 
 32 
Selectman Putnam moved to grant the abatement as recommended by the Assessor for map/lot 030-085 in the 33 
amount of $1,804.11.  Selectman Bauer seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0. 34 
 35 
Selectman Putnam moved to grant the abatement as recommended by the Assessor for map/lot 009-001-005 in the 36 
amount of $457.06.  Selectman Bauer seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0. 37 
 38 
The two abatement applications recommended for denial by the Assessor are for one lot (026/164) for which the 39 
abatement application was filed untimely, in August 2008, and the other (004-003-046) which suggests a difference 40 
in market value.  Ms. Noel has notified these property owners of the recommendation for denial and has indicated to 41 
the owners this would be discussed at tonight’s meeting. 42 
 43 
Selectman Putnam moved to deny the abatement as recommended by the Assessor for map/lot 026/164.  Selectman 44 
Bauer seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0. 45 
 46 
Selectman Putnam moved to deny the abatement as recommended by the Assessor for map/lot 004/003/046.  Se-47 
lectman Bauer seconded for discussion.  Selectman Dannis asked Ms. Noel to explain the analysis and evidence put 48 
forward by the applicant.   Ms. Noel explained that 5-6 sales had occurred in 2008, even with those sales Ms. Noel 49 
felt the properties might have been out of line and she wanted to keep the town in line.  This property is larger than 50 
the properties for which the applicant provided comparables.  There was no further discussion.  All were in favor.  51 
Motion passed 5/0. 52 
 53 
6:00 p.m. – Request to Approve Current Land Use Change Tax & Issuance of Warrant (1).  Ms. Noel ex-54 
plained that this is for a commercial property that has changed owners, therefore because of the sale, it is not in the 55 
same name and comes out of current use.  The new owner would need to apply for Current Use.  Selectman Putnam 56 



APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – 2/9/2009 

 2

moved to approve the recommendation for LUCT in the amount of $28,497.30.  Selectman Bauer seconded.  All 1 
were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0. 2 
 3 
6:15 p.m. – Proposed Revocable Temporary License Agreement for Emergency Egress – 40 Nashua Street 4 
LLC.  Selectman Putnam recused himself from this discussion.  Bill Parker, Community Development Director, 5 
presented a proposed revocable temporary license agreement for emergency egress for 40 Nashua Street LLC (Map 6 
26/Lot 177) that will utilize a portion of Town-owned property situated on the easterly side of Town Hall.  Mr. 7 
Parker indicated that in order for this business to work, a second access is required.  Bill McKinney has worked 8 
with a contractor and the business owner and it was agreed to have the emergency egress off the side of the build-9 
ing.  It would be a landing and 12 steps onto Putnam Street and be a renewable license every year.  Bill Parker ex-10 
plained this business will be located where the Doggie Spa previously was located, which did not require a second 11 
egress.  This is a one-story business and the egress will be on the ground floor with an apartment above.  Bill Parker 12 
explained that the egress will empty into the area currently used for ambulance personnel parking on Putnam Street 13 
which is owned by the Town.   14 
 15 
Guy Scaife explained that the town refers to this area as a street, but it is more of an alley and there will still be ade-16 
quate space for pedestrians and parking.  The town property goes up to the edge of this area.  Selectman Dannis 17 
asked if there will be rent paid for its use?  Bill Parker responded that there is none currently in the license and he 18 
would not know what an appropriate fee would be.  Vice Chairman Finan asked if the town assumes any liability if 19 
they don’t shovel?  Mr. Parker said it is their responsibility to maintain and it would be the business owner’s liabil-20 
ity.  Selectman Dannis indicated this is a license limited to one year, so that it is not a lease or a permanent arrange-21 
ment, asking if Bill Drescher is comfortable with that?  Bill Parker said he is and it will be reviewed annually.  22 
Chairman Daniels asked how it will be controlled as an emergency egress only?  Bill Parker said there will be inter-23 
nal signs posted.  Selectman Dannis asked if the town is setting a precedent – allowing an egress onto town prop-24 
erty; if someone else wants something like this, what system will be used?  Is the town saying it is okay, so it is an 25 
open policy?  Bill Parker responded it will be handled on a case by case basis, for this business, the first option was 26 
to use the back door, but that would not work since that is off the kitchen and this seems to be a better solution.  Bill 27 
Parker does not think it will set a precedent.  Selectman Dannis asked if the town should ask for a fee of $100 per 28 
year so that there is an understanding that there is an exchange.  Bill Parker does not think it would hurt to have a 29 
nominal fee, but it would not matter one way or the other.  Selectman Bauer thinks handling this on a case by case 30 
basis is a good idea, it will not impact the sidewalk or snowplows.  It was a good idea to go with a temporary li-31 
cense; for which Selectman Bauer does not think a nominal fee is necessary.  Bill Parker noted that the town is try-32 
ing to encourage downtown businesses for economic development, so another fee might not be a good idea.   33 
 34 
Selectman Bauer moved to grant the temporary license as presented.  Vice Chairman Finan seconded.  All were in 35 
favor.  Motion passed 4/0.  Selectman Putnam stepped back up to the Board.  36 
 37 
6:30 p.m. – Presentation of Editions of “The Carey House Chronicles – the Bird Still Soars and the Bell Still 38 
Rings”.  Polly Cote, Heritage Commission, presented all Board members and the Town Administrator with a copy 39 
of the Carey House Chronicles – the Bird Still Soars and the Bell Still Rings.  Ms. Cote noted that the Historical 40 
Society wanted to present the Board with copies in order to read the stories about Milford.  Chairman Daniels 41 
thanked Polly for helping to keep the history of the town alive. 42 
  43 
 44 
3. PRESS AND PUBLIC COMMENTS (regarding items that are not on the agenda):   There were none. 45 
 46 
4. DECISIONS: 47 
 48 
 a) CONSENT CALENDAR.  Chairman Daniels asked if there were any items to be removed from the Con-49 
sent Calendar.  He explained that if they are taken off the Consent Calendar, they will be discussed fully; otherwise 50 
they will be accepted together without discussion.  There were no items removed for discussion.  Selectman Putnam 51 
moved and Selectman Bauer seconded to approve the Consent Calendar, as follows, with all members in favor.       52 
    53 
 (1) Acceptance of Unanticipated Funds Under $5,000 (31:95(b)).  The Board was presented and approved 54 
the Acceptance and Appropriation of Unanticipated Revenues Under $5,000 (31:95(b)) as follows: 55 
 56 
 Source  Amount  Purpose 57 



APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – 2/9/2009 

 3

Town of Mont Vernon $   500.00 Contribution for the Host Homes Program 1 
 2 
Primex – Wellness Grant $2,200.00 Funding for the Fire Department to purchase a multi-purpose 3 
      strength training machine, convert an office into a fitness 4 
      room and hire a personal trainer 5 
   6 
 b) OTHER DECISIONS 7 
 8 

(1) Request for Participation in the Voters’ Guide Proofing Sessions.    Dawn Griska, Executive Assistant, 9 
requested assistance on the proofing of the Voters’ Guide with Ryan Hansen on February 23, 2009 and the 10 
second proofing on February 26, 2009 to be done at Town Hall, times to be determined.  Chairman Daniels 11 
and Selectman Bauer indicated that they will attend those sessions. 12 

  13 
5.  TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: 14 
 15 
 a) Recycling/Co-Op Contract.  Guy Scaife and Bill Ruoff met with representatives from the Co-Op to re-16 
view the contract; a few changes will be made and Guy Scaife hopes to get that within a week and get the contract 17 
in front of the Board.  The Co-Op is looking for this to begin in June 2010, right now they are getting commercial 18 
interest, not just municipalities.  Chairman Daniels asked when a decision must be made by the Board?  Guy Scaife 19 
said a decision must be made by the end of April, it is important to get in on the ground floor.  If Milford commits, 20 
Selectman Dannis asked what is the fiscal impact?  Guy Scaife said it is a 15-year commitment, they are building a 21 
facility with a 25-year life expectancy.  The Co-Op will be financing $14 million.  If Milford goes this route, all the 22 
recycling would go to them; the town would be committing to go single stream long term and would get a cost ad-23 
vantage.  Chairman Daniels asked how this will change the operation at the transfer station?  Guy Scaife said a 24 
change can be made with minimal impact; this would not affect curb side pick up, the drop off as it exists today 25 
would continue.   26 
 27 
Selectman Dannis indicated the town’s experience with other co-ops has shown that if towns withdraw, the costs go 28 
to the remaining towns, how does the town guard itself against ending up holding the bag?  Guy Scaife said all 29 
members are signing up for a commitment of 15 years.  There will not be a fluctuation of communities participating.  30 
Chairman Daniels asked how recycling may change over those 15 years?  Guy Scaife responded that all streams get 31 
sorted and the town will move with the technology; he does not see it going back to manual sorting.  This will be a 32 
state of the art center; the risk would be if another facility came to the state and could compete with newer technol-33 
ogy, but it probably is not there now.  Selectman Bauer asked how this change would affect employees at the Trans-34 
fer Station?  Guy Scaife said they would need one less employee; they have several positions that have not been 35 
filled and have utilized temporary employees in case this change occurs.  Selectman Putnam asked if the Board has 36 
seen numbers of what is done currently versus this change?  Guy Scaife said the numbers were presented to the 37 
Board, but the final numbers have not been brought forward; Bill Ruoff and Guy will get those to the Board.  Se-38 
lectman Putnam would like to get that as soon as possible before the April deadline.  Guy Scaife said it is a moving 39 
target on the revenue side.   40 
 41 
Selectman Putnam asked if all communities will sign the contract at the same time so they will expire together.  Guy 42 
Scaife said this first group will need to be signed before May 1.  Selectman Bauer asked if the contract will be 43 
brought to the Board?  Guy Scaife said it will come before the Board once it has gone through the Town Attorney.  44 
Selectman Dannis stated the town will be committing to a 15-year contract, but what happens if a town just leaves 45 
the Co-Op?  Is there a letter of credit to back up the towns?  There are moving targets that need to be addressed, 46 
what is the up front financial commitment from each town?  Guy Scaife indicated the Concord Co-Op has accumu-47 
lated a sizable amount of money to be used to build a new facility. They are totally funding this project.  Goffstown 48 
and Hooksett are on board and Nashua is leaning that way.  Guy Scaife also noted that each quarter, if there is a 49 
return, there is a 45-55% spread, based on tonnage; the only variance is that on the quarterly surplus, the original 50 
towns will get a higher percentage, which is pro-rated on the tonnage of materials the town brings to the facility.  51 
Guy Scaife will get the contract to Board members as soon as possible for review.  Selectman Bauer wonders if any 52 
towns might not like the 15 year commitment.  Guy Scaife said it is a common concern, but one that he believes that 53 
most towns will understand and accept. 54 

 55 
 b) Miscellaneous.      56 



APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – 2/9/2009 

 4

Parking Bans:  Guy Scaife indicated there have been complaints regarding winter parking bans in the oval 1 
and side streets.  There has been a concession made for the Red Arrow Diner which has helped, but it is 2 
still a problem.  It is time to give consideration to talk about the parking bans during winter to ensure plows 3 
can get through.  In summer, there is a street sweeping ban in effect.  Guy Scaife asked Chief Douglas to 4 
do a report to see how many tickets have been issued.  Since November 1, 2008, there were ten tickets 5 
given out because of winter parking bans in the oval area.  Including Nashua, Middle and Putnam Streets, 6 
there were a total of 38 tickets issued.  In larger communities, there are light systems set up to notify of 7 
parking bans.  Guy Scaife suggested maybe the Traffic Safety Committee could look at what could be done 8 
as an alternative.  There needs to be some brainstorming on this; he hopes to find a solution rather than 9 
having a ban that is not needed 100% of the time.  Guy Scaife would like to recommend this being sent to 10 
the TSC for discussion.  One challenge is that many people just pass through Milford and are not familiar 11 
with the town.   Ten tickets were issued in the oval area in 3 months.  Selectman Bauer asked if there were 12 
any options other than a lighting system?  Guy Scaife said no, that has not been researched, but other 13 
communities could be looked at to see if they have found other solutions.  In other communities, Vice 14 
Chairman Finan said a snow emergency is declared, but he does not know how it is declared.  Selectman 15 
Putnam indicated the TSC is not really for parking, they are for traffic; why don’t we get DO-IT and Plan-16 
ning together and add a Board of Selectman member.  Chairman Daniels indicated he will keep this on the 17 
Board of Selectman goals list since the Board is in charge of the parking ordinances so it needs to be in-18 
volved somehow.  Selectman Bauer said she will be involved but asked if an official memo could be sent 19 
to DO-IT?  Selectman Dannis said this is being recommended from town staff to the Board of Selectman, 20 
so Guy Scaife should identify which town staff should be a part of it.  Selectman Bauer wants everyone to 21 
talk together to brainstorm.  Chairman Daniels said it can start with the Board of Selectman or with Bill 22 
Parker, when ideas are identified, other boards can be brought in. 23 
 24 
Fireworks:  Guy Scaife indicated fireworks and environmental pollution they cause have been brought up.  25 
Mr. Scaife had Nicole Banks, Recreation Director, do some research on this; it may not be an issue this 26 
year, but the articles talk about towns stopping the shooting of fireworks over any body of water.  Guy 27 
Scaife will read the articles and get copies to Board members.  The Recreation Department is thinking 28 
about alternatives for the future. 29 
 30 
Legislative Session:  Wednesday, Guy Scaife will attend the legislative session in Concord for bills that are 31 
of interest to Milford.  Guy Scaife does not support binding arbitration or right to strike.  Guy Scaife thinks 32 
that should not be changed.  Selectman Dannis asked if Guy Scaife will testify or submit a position for the 33 
retirement reform?  Guy Scaife hopes to attend that session if there is not any overlap, but he will not sub-34 
mit any recommendation.   35 
 36 
 37 

6.  DISCUSSIONS: 38 
 39 

a) NH Municipal Association Request for Positions for State Budget Revenue Raising Measures.   40 
Chairman Daniels provided some examples of State budget revenue raising measures for Board review and 41 
comment.  Chairman Daniels attended the meeting January 30, 2009 where discussion surrounded whether 42 
or not towns want NHMA to support an increase in the gas tax to support roads and bridges.  They voted to 43 
have NHMA support an increase in the gas tax which is in a bill that went to the legislature.  Milford’s po-44 
sition was against it.  The hearing is February 17, if anyone would like to testify.  There was little to no talk 45 
about cutting expenditures.  Nothing has been cut, the Governor’s budget will be out on Thursday, Febru-46 
ary 12.  There will be a meeting March 2 for which NHMA want Boards to go through this list to deter-47 
mine if  towns are interested in having NHMA support the various revenue raising proposals listed.   48 

 49 
Vice Chairman Finan asked if this is to get the State out of the hole?  Chairman Daniels said that is part of 50 
it, but the state is at a $80-$90 million deficit.  Last week House Bill 30 passed, which will reduce the 51 
shortfall by $16.2 million.  They are looking toward the next budget, not the current.  By law, Vice Chair-52 
man Finan asked if NH has to balance the budget or can the State have a deficit?  Chairman Daniels is not 53 
sure, somewhere it says the State has to balance the budget.  Selectman Bauer asked Chairman Daniels to 54 
explain the communication services tax increase.  Chairman Daniels said they have not told people any ex-55 
planation of what these items are; it would normally be something attached to forms of communication 56 
such as telephones.  Selectman Bauer asked if Chairman Daniels will know more before it is decided.  57 



APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – 2/9/2009 

 5

Chairman Daniels is hoping to get additional information before the March meeting.  Selectman Bauer 1 
asked if there was discussion or was this just an idea?  Chairman Daniels said some people believe that 2 
gambling will bring in revenue for the State.  It could be slot machines or other forms of gambling.  The 3 
legislature has refused gambling for a number of years.  There have been reports that gambling has been 4 
brought in to regions which have become depressed areas ever since.    Selectman Dannis said he believes 5 
Milford should support the Meals & Rooms Tax, Regional Efforts and Retirement System, asking if other 6 
Board members would support those.  Chairman Daniels agrees with Regional Efforts but is not sure of the 7 
wording on the Retirement System.  Selectman Dannis said the retirement system needs to be looked at, so 8 
that it can be more consistent.  Another idea would be to look at investment of land and find places that are 9 
far enough out of view, to put up wind towers or hydro-electrical power or geothermal power.  All of these 10 
things could provide additional energy resources and provide another revenue source.  These could not be 11 
done in the next two years however.   12 
 13 
Chairman Daniels indicated those are good ideas, but the Legislature is looking at getting through the next 14 
budget without getting further into debt.  Selectman Dannis suggested Milford should also look at asking 15 
for a bail out from the new administration.  The State should look at controlled spending.  Selectman Bauer 16 
asked for an explanation of the Room & Meals tax expansion.  Chairman Daniels did not have that infor-17 
mation; but it might include taxing candy bars and such that are currently exempt.  Vice Chairman Finan 18 
asked what the Room & Meals tax is in NH?  Chairman Daniels said the meals tax is 8%, but he was not 19 
sure of Rooms tax.  Guy Scaife believes it is population based.  Selectman Dannis asked what is needed 20 
tonight?  Chairman Daniels just wanted to raise questions, he wanted to know how the Board felt about 21 
taxes and fees.  One message should be clear, said Guy Scaife, last year the Legislature defaulted on its use 22 
where people could grossly identify their income to inflate the retirement benefit.  The Board make up 23 
should be looked at and should have a financial background.  Selectman Putnam asked if 100% of the lot-24 
tery money goes to education?  Chairman Daniels said no, because there are administrative fees and the 25 
rest goes to education.  Selectman Putnam asked how much education does the state support?  Chairman 26 
Daniels said it is about $1 billion.  Selectman Putnam asked if lottery cards could be expanded for educa-27 
tion?  Selectman Dannis did not feel it would be right to add more lotteries to take more money from the 28 
people that are less able to pay those taxes.  Selectman Bauer asked if Chairman Daniels attends as a repre-29 
sentative of this Board?  Chairman Daniels said he goes as a representative of this Board with whatever po-30 
sition this Board comes up with.  It does not need to be done tonight, but Chairman Daniels has to gather 31 
additional information to answer the questions from this Board; he would like Board members to think 32 
about these ideas and provide input that he can bring forward regarding revenues for the State.  The gas tax 33 
proposal will be discussed at the meeting February 17 and March 2 is when representatives meet to discuss 34 
where their municipalities stand on these issues.  After the Governor’s budget cuts (this Thursday), Chair-35 
man Daniels might receive additional information from NHMA about how to reduce costs.  Selectman 36 
Bauer would like to know more before making any decisions.  Vice Chairman Finan asked if this Board 37 
can get consensus on any of these items.  Vice Chairman Finan does not think there should be a communi-38 
cations tax. 39 

 40 
Selectman Dannis moved to not support the communications services tax.  Selectman Bauer seconded.  All were in 41 
favor.  Motion passed 5/0. 42 
 43 
Selectman Dannis moved to support Regionalization efforts.  Selectman Putnam seconded.  All were in favor.  Mo-44 
tion passed 5/0. 45 
 46 
Selectman Dannis moved to support changes to the retirement system to reduce the cost of benefits without taking a 47 
position on reduction or elimination of benefits.  Selectman Putnam seconded for discussion.  Selectman Dannis 48 
amended the motion that the Board is in favor of reducing the cost of benefits, and of reducing the abuses of the 49 
system like gross overtime and sick time (as identified by Guy Scaife) to get a higher payout.  Selectman Putnam 50 
seconded the amendment.  Selectman Dannis wants the system to be more efficient and to tackle the abuses that 51 
Guy Scaife referred to.  We do not need to debate all the issues or changes tonight, but instead modify and that can-52 
not be done tonight.  Selectman Bauer said there are several changes that could be done that she is not in favor of.  53 
Selectman Dannis wants to address efficiencies and abuse – two separate issues.   54 
 55 



APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – 2/9/2009 

 6

Chairman Daniels asked how people feel about opposing any changes in current tax structure that would decrease 1 
revenue?  Selectman Dannis would not support it because it would take away flexibility.  Chairman Daniels will get 2 
additional information on items as discussed. 3 

 4 
 5 
b) Board of Selectman Goals.  Chairman Daniels provided a worksheet with Board of Selectman goals and 6 
the status of same.  Selectman Dannis indicated this Board has done well handling the transition; the allocation 7 
of responsibility between the Board and Town Administrator should be looked at during the beginning of every 8 
year with the new Board.  It would remind the new Board of the responsibilities.  Selectman Bauer thinks that 9 
is an excellent idea; noting it would be very helpful to any new Board member.  The goals were reviewed and 10 
comments made regarding open or pending items. 11 
 12 

 13 
7. SELECTMEN’S REPORTS/DISCUSSIONS:  14 
 15 
 a) FROM SPECIAL BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & SPECIAL COMMITTEES.   16 
   17 
  (1) Milford Area Communications Center (MACC Base) 2009 Contract.  As of tonight, Selectman 18 
Putnam indicated Wilton has not rescinded their letter of withdrawal from MACC Base.  It is supposed to happen, if 19 
they plan to go forward with the withdrawal, how can we market MACC Base with a member leaving or how can 20 
we gear up if we lose that town?  Selectman Putnam will know more after tomorrow night’s (Wilton) meeting.  21 
Chairman Daniels asked how Wilton will be treated if they come back, as a new town or existing town?  The letter 22 
from Wilton stated they were withdrawing by the end of 2009, so this is their last year, but he has heard they might 23 
want to come back, so do they come back as a new town coming in or as one of the 3 towns under contract last 24 
year?  Selectman Putnam said they have not left yet and they signed the 5-year contract.  Selectman Bauer said if 25 
there is a clause in the contract allowing a town to rescind their decision, they should be able to stay as one of the 26 
original towns.  Selectman Putnam said Milford has not received the letter to rescind the withdrawal.  Unless there 27 
is something in the contract dealing with rescinding the withdrawal notice, Selectman Dannis said they cannot come 28 
back and rescind with the same benefits.  If there is a formal step under the contract for rescinding that is fine, but if 29 
there isn’t, they can’t.  Chairman Daniels felt it did not say anything in the contract about rescinding notification.  30 
Selectman Putnam said if Milford makes it difficult, they will probably take off.  Wilton signed the contract with the 31 
Milford negotiation points.  Chairman Daniels noted then they signed the withdrawal two days before the contract 32 
expired.  Selectman Bauer added Wilton gave a formal letter backing out, if they changed their mind, Milford needs 33 
to know that in writing, at some point there was the feeling that we were going to look into MACC Base as this year 34 
progresses.  Milford was very clear about looking into other avenues.  Chairman Daniels said the next step is to find 35 
out what Wilton is doing.  Selectman Putnam said he knows Wilton has been a member since MACC Base started, 36 
so why would Milford make it difficult for them if they decide they do not want to leave?  Chairman Daniels said 37 
Milford signed that contract and then Wilton chose to withdraw.  Selectman Putnam said Wilton did not have the 38 
recent changes to the contract until after that meeting.  Chairman Daniels is curious what kind of process the Board 39 
of Governors would have if a town decided to come back after they had left.  Selectman Putnam said if they had 40 
left, they would be treated like a new town but there was no official parting of the ways.  Chairman Daniels said it 41 
seems contrary that they withdrew and then decided to rescind, it does not seem fair that they could do that.  Vice 42 
Chairman Finan agreed stating why wouldn’t everyone just give notice every year?  That doesn’t need to be ad-43 
dressed right now, let’s find out where Wilton stands.   44 
 45 
  (2) Recommendations on the Phillips Way Traffic Direction Issue from the Traffic Safety Commit-46 
tee.  Selectman Putnam indicated the Traffic Safety Committee met January 26 to discuss Phillips Way, traffic 47 
counts were done and recommendations were made.  After discussion, Selectman Putnam moved to leave Phillips 48 
Way the way it currently is as recommended by the TSC.  Vice Chairman Finan seconded for discussion.  Select-49 
man Dannis asked if residents involved in these discussions should be notified of the decision?  Selectman Putnam 50 
indicated the residents involved were given notice of the TSC meeting and did not attend.  Selectman Dannis asked 51 
if they should be given another chance?  Chairman Daniels indicated this Board sent the issue to the TSC.  Guy 52 
Scaife said he will communicate the decision to the person that originally brought it to the Board of Selectman, if 53 
Bill Ruoff has not already done so.  Guy Scaife noted there are problems at Nashua Street/Tonella Road; that inter-54 
section needs to be improved.  All were in favor of the motion.  Selectman Bauer asked if the recommended striping 55 
of Tonella Road is feasible?  Guy Scaife said it is and it will be done as soon as weather permits. 56 
 57 



APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – 2/9/2009 

 7

 b) OTHER ITEMS (that are not on the agenda) 1 
 2 
8.  APPROVAL OF FINAL MINUTES.   3 
Selectman Putnam moved to approve the minutes of January 19, 2009 as presented.  Vice Chairman Finan seconded 4 
for discussion.  Selectman Bauer requested a correction to Page 3, lines 43-45 that the motion was made by Select-5 
man Dannis and that Selectman Dannis, Selectman Bauer and Vice Chairman Finan were in favor with Chairman 6 
Daniels and Selectman Putnam opposed.  Selectman Putnam, Vice Chairman Finan, Selectman Bauer and Chairman 7 
Daniels were in favor, with Selectman Dannis abstaining.  Motion passed 4/0/1. 8 
 9 
  10 
9. INFORMATION ITEMS REQUIRING NO DECISIONS 11 
 12 
10. NON-PUBLIC SESSION: 13 
 14 
Selectman Putnam moved to enter into non-public session at 7:55 p.m. for Personnel.  Vice Chairman Finan sec-15 
onded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0.  Selectman Putnam moved to come out of non-public session at 8:40 16 
p.m.  Vice Chairman Finan seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0.  Selectman Dannis moved to seal the 17 
minutes of this non-public session.  Vice Chairman Finan seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0.  After 18 
discussion, it was announced that in non-public session the Board discussed a personnel issue.   19 
 20 
11. ADJOURNMENT: 21 
 22 
There being no further business to come before this Meeting, Selectman Putnam moved to adjourn at 8:45 p.m.  23 
Vice Chairman Finan seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0. 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
____________________________   ___________________________________ 28 
Gary Daniels, Chairman    Mike Putnam, Member 29 
 30 
 31 
____________________________   ___________________________________ 32 
Tim Finan, Vice Chairman    Katherine Bauer, Member 33 
 34 
 35 
____________________________  36 
James Dannis, Member 37 
 38 


